SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 23, 2015
9:04 a. m

9:04:28 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Laura Pierre, St af f, Senator Anna MacKi nnon; El i zabet h

Nudel man, Di rector, School Finances and Facilities,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent; Senator John
Coghill; German Baquero, Staff, Senator Coghill; Marty

Hester, Deputy Director, D vision of Insurance, Departnent
of Commerce, Community and Economic Developnent; Erin
Shine, Staff, Senator Anna MacKi nnon.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

David Nees, Sel f, Anchor age; Linda  Hul bert, Sel f,
Fai r banks; Matthew Bl attmachr, Vice-President, Al aska Trust
Conmpany, Anchorage; Douglas Blattmachr, President and CEQ
Al aska Trust Conpany, Ari zona.

SUMVARY

SB 15 LI FE | NSURANCE POLI CY PREM UM TAX



SB 15 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 30 MARI JUANA REG CONT. SUBST,; CRI MES; DEFENSES

CS SB 30 (FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with
a "do pass" reconmendation and with two new zero
fiscal not es from t he Depar t ment of
Adm ni stration; one new zero fiscal note fromthe
Departnment of Corrections; one new zero fiscal
note from the Departnment of Law, one new zero
fiscal note from the Departnent of Public Safety;
one new zero fiscal note from the Al aska
Judiciary System and one new fiscal inpact note
from the Departrment of Comrerce, Comunity and
Econom c Devel opnent .

SB 64 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RElI MBURSEMENT

SB 64 was REPORTED out of conmttee with a "do
pass” recommendat i on and W th one new
indeterminate fiscal note from the Departnent of
Educati on and Early Devel oprent.

#sbh64
SENATE BI LL NO. 64

"An Act relating to school bond debt reinbursenent;
and providing for an effective date."

9: 05: 30 AM

LAURA PI ERRE, STAFF, SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON, expl ained SB
64. She said that SB 64 would sunset the school bond debt
rei nbursenent program for five years, and would reduce the
rates. Currently, the reinbursenent rates were 70 percent
for a standard construction or new build on a school; and
60 percent on non-standard expansi on and construction.

Ms. Pierre discussed the Sectional Analysis (copy on file):
Section 1: Anends AS 14.11.014, adds new subsection
(d) Sunsets the bond debt reinbursenent provisions for

school construction and najor nmaintenance for five
years, January 1, 2015 - July 1, 2020.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/23/15 9:04 A M



Section 2: Amends AS 14.11.100(a) Page 6, line 21
restricts reinbursenent of bonds authorized after
January 1, 2015. Page 7, lines 1 - 11, deletes
| anguage relating to bonds authorized after May 1,

2015.

Section 3: Amends AS 14.11.100(a) Page 12, line 17 -
Page 13, line 2 inserts language relating to bonds
aut hori zed on or after July 1, 2020. (18) For projects
approved under AS 14.11.100 (h), (i), and (j)(2) - (5)
t he rei mbursenment woul d be 50 percent.

(19) For projects approved under AS 14.11.100
(h), (i), and (j)(2), (3), and
(5) the reinbursenment would be 40 percent.

Section 4: Amends AS 14.11. 100, adds a new section (S)
Restricts t he Comm ssi oner from approving an
application for bond debt rei mbur senent bet ween
January 1, 2015 - July 1, 2020

Section 5: Amends AS 14.11.102, adds new section
(c)Restricts the Commissioner from approving an
application for bond debt rei mbur senent bet ween
January 1, 2015 - July 1, 2020

Section 6: Repeals sections 1, 4, and 5 of this act on
July 1, 2020

Section 7. Retroactivity clause

Sections 1, 2, 4, and 5 of this act are
retroactive to January 1, 2015

Section 8: Section 3 of this act takes effect July 1,
2020

Section 9: Sections 1, 2, 4, 5, and 7 of this act take
effect immedi ately

9:08:49 AM

Senator O son remarked that the bill was a positive nove
toward addressing the shortfall in revenue. He wondered how
the bill affected the construction of the Kivalina School

as

related to the Kasayulie Case. Ms. Pierre replied that

the only school with projects on a potential ballot was the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/23/15 9:04 A M



Anchorage School District, and their election would be
April 7, 2015. The Anchorage School District would not
receive reinbursenment for the bonds, if the bill were
signed and passed into law prior to the election. She did
not know how the other school districts' bond packages were
struct ured.

Senator O son wondered if the bill affected the Kivalina
School construction. V5. Pierre replied t hat t he
| egi sl ation did not af f ect t he Ki val i na Schoo

construction.

Senator Bishop wondered if there would be any new budget
requests for new projects.

ELI ZABETH NUDEL VAN, DI RECTOR, SCHOOL FI NANCES AND
FACI LI TI ES, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT,
explained that the tinmeline eligibility throughout the
| egislation was voter authorization. Sonme of the voter-
aut horized bonds were not yet applied to the departnent,
and sonme had not yet sold all of the bonds. The | egislation
stated that the conm ssi oner may  not approve and
application for indebtedness authorized by the qualified
voters of the nunicipality.

DAVI D NEES, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of the |egislation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

9:16: 58 AM
AT EASE

9:18: 36 AM
RECONVENED

9:18:48 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon discussed the retroactive effective
date. She remarked that there was sone concerns about the
legality of the retroactive date of January 1, 2015, and
how it affected | anguage consistent with statute.

Ms. Pierre explained that she had some di scussion regarding
the retroactive effective date. The legislative |ega
department suggested and effective date of My 1, 2015,
which reflected current state statute. The statute stated

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/23/15 9:04 A M



that districts could issue bond debt from OCctober 2006
through May 1, 2015. She announced that |egislative |ega
did not express concern regarding the retroactive date, so
long as the legislation were signed and passed by the
Anchorage el ection on April 7, 2015.

Senator O son asked if the admnistration was in favor of
the legislation. M. Pierre responded that there was a
schedul ed neeting with the governor to discuss the bill.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon  announced that | ocal comunities
currently had the ability to indebt the state to an anount
that the comunity determi nes, rather than what the state
det er m nes.

Senat or Dunl eavy felt t hat SB 64 was responsible
| egislation. He believed that the legislature often invited
| awsuits, but he felt the fear of litigation should not be
a driving force behind supporting a bill.

9:23: 30 AM
AT EASE

9:23:59 AM
RECONVENED

9:24: 06 AM

Senator O son agreed with the focus of the legislation. He
remar ked that school construction was inportant, but also
very expensive. He felt that the |egislation was prudent.

Senator Dunl eavy stressed that there was no guarantee that
the state would provide funding, because it was always
subject to appropriation. Co-Chair MacKinnon agreed wth
t hat assertion

Vice-Chair Mcciche stated that the fiscal note related to
debt service.

9:25:51 AM
AT EASE

9:26: 52 AM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/23/15 9:04 A M



Vice-Chair Mcciche expected the bill to have zero fisca
i npact on the state.

Vice-Chair Mcciche MOVED to REPORT SB 64 out of committee
wi th individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

SB 64 was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with one new indetermnate fiscal note
fromthe Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent.

9:28: 03 AM
AT EASE

9:33: 09 AM
RECONVENED

#sb15
SENATE BILL NO. 15

"An Act relating to the tax on policy year prem uns
for life insurance policies; relating to single and
group life insurance policies; and relating to other
types of insurance policies that insure the life of
one or nore individuals."

9:33: 09 AM

SENATOR  JOHN  COGHI LL, SPONSOR, expl ai ned that t he
| egislation would install eight-tenths of a percent instead
of one-tenth of one percent on policies that exceeded
$100,000. He stated that the issue was broad to his
attention as he was dealing with some trust |egislation for
estate planning. He remarked that the bill canme by way of
request, dealing with some of the people that were involved
in state planning.

GERVAN BAQUERO, STAFF, SENATOR COGHI LL, renarked that the
legislation would only affects the tax collected on life
i nsurance policies that exceed $100,000 by changing the tax
from one-tenth of a percent to 0.08 percent. The
| egislation also added an applicability that would affect
all future life insurance policies from Decenber 31, 2015

He shared that there was a zero fiscal note that was from
the Division of Insurance. He read from the second page of
the fiscal note:

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/23/15 9:04 A M



The reduction in tax is expected to have a negligible
fiscal inpact on the Dyvision, as the anmount of
premumthat is subject to this tax is very small. The
potential increase as a result of additional prem um
sales is expected to negate any reduction in revenues,
if not increase the tax revenues beyond what they
previ ously.

9:38:16 AM

Senator Coghill Al aska had been a main player in the trust
investnment strategy in the US. He remarked that other
states had followed Alaska's strategy in trust investnents.
He felt that legislation would attract further investnent
by reducing the tax rate.

Senator O son wondered how the change affected the policy
purchaser or the policy pay out recipient. Senator Coghill
stated that legislation would have very little effect on
t he purchaser or recipient.

Senator O son surm sed that the purchaser would not see an
increase in the cost of the premium He further wondered if
there were consuner groups that would be affected by the
change. Senator Coghill responded that the estate planning
i ndustry felt t he | egi sl ation was a benefit to
beneficiaries by the |lower tax rate.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon |ooked at the South Dakota rates. She
wondered how Al aska conpared to all states. She remarked
that the rate was reduced at the request of the insurance
conpani es. Therefore the insurance conpanies benefitted
fromthe change. She felt that Al aska could obtain addition
policies that had been |ost over sone of the years. She
wondered if Al aska wanted to be nunmber one in the insurance
i ndustry. Senator Coghill deferred to M. Baquero.

M. Baquero explained that the intent of the |egislation
was to remain conpetitive with the other states.

9:43:11 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon did not know if the | ower taxes would be
good for the state. She remarked that the policies were
slightly reduced, but noted that the only people that
advocated for the legislation were the insurance conpani es.
M. Baquero replied there was no opposition for the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/23/15 9:04 A M



| egislation. There was only support from the insurance
i ndustry.

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that South Dakota taxed on
annuities, but Alaska did not. She |ooked at insurance
policies under $100,000, Al aska was taxing at two-tenths of
a percent higher than South Dakota. She wondered why there
was not a reduction on the wunder $100,000. M. Baquero
replied that reducing the tax for under $100,000 was also a
policy issue.

Senat or Coghill furthered that the issue was nostly rel ated
to estate planning in the trust industry.

9:46: 38 AM

LI NDA  HULBERT, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the legislation. She felt that the
i nsurance industry in Al aska should be conpetitive.

MATTHEW BLATTMACHR, VI CE- PRESI DENT, ALASKA TRUST COVPANY,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of the
| egislation. He remarked that the insurance conpanies nay
benefit from increased business, but the legislation also
benefitted the consunmer. He stated that the |egislation was
proposed to change the structure of the |arger policies.

Senator O son wondered how to reduce the "frenzy" between
Al aska and South Dakota. M. Blattnmachr replied that it was
a valid concern, which is why the state was only matching
the rate in South Dakota. He furthered that it was possible
that South Dakota may |ower their tax structure, but shared
that it was highly unlikely because their tax structure had
been established for a nunber of years.

Vi ce-Chair Mcciche wondered if the bill required an annua
review. M. Blattmachr responded that he did not know if
there would be an annual review He stated that the issue
was nonitored by the industry.

9:54: 30 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered if there were people that
would switch their date of service, because of tax policy.
M. Blattmachr replied in the affirmative. He stated that
trust accounts were created to purchase |ife insurance
pol i ci es.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/23/15 9:04 A M



DOUGLAS BLATTMACHR, PRESI DENT AND CEQ ALASKA  TRUST
COVPANY, ARI ZONA (via teleconference), spoke in support of
t he | egislation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

MARTY HESTER, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF | NSURANCE
DEPARTMENT OF COVMERCE, COMMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELCOPMENT,
stated that he was avail able for questions.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered why Al aska wanted to be nunber
one on a taxation issue. M. Hester responded that it was a
policy decision. He explained that he was available to
speak to the differences in premunms from the previous
years versus the small anounts.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if he had the current spreadsheet.
M. Hester replied that he had the updated spreadsheet.

9:58:13 AM
AT EASE

9:59:12 AM
RECONVENED

9:59:18 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon |ooked at a spreadsheet titled, "Life
| nsurance Conpanies Licensed in the State of Al aska" (copy
on file). She queried the difference in the premuns. M.
Hester replied that he had done calculations on 2013 and
2011, because they were the smallest and |argest years. He
explained that in 2011, if the premumtax was reduced to a
0.08 percent, the difference to the state collection would
have been $88,656. In 2013, the state would have collected
a difference of $15,961. The amount of the collected taxes
woul d vary depending on the prem um anmount. He explained
that the increase in 2011 was due to a policy that was
witten in excess of $300 million.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon wondered if he said $3 nmillion or $300
mllion. M. Hester replied that it was $300 mllion.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if the bill would translate into
state investnent in which conpanies would hire nore people.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/23/15 9:04 A M



M. Hester responded that he did not know the business
pl ans of the conpanies.

Senat or Dunl eavy stressed that he would like to know if the
conpanies would pursue instate hire. M. Hulbert replied
that the Al aska Trust Act passed in 1967 required that one
must have a mmjor asset in Alaska in order to set up a
trust. The Alaska Trust, and the premum tax bills had
added financial capacity to Al askan banks, as well as
attracted many individuals to invest in the state.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the Alaska Trust Conpany
|ocated in Al aska. V. Blattmachr replied that the
corporate headquarters were |ocated in Al aska.

Co- Chair WMacKi nnon renmarked that there was a letter which
stated that 362 life insurers were licensed to do business
and none were domciled in the state. She asked for nore
information. M. Hester replied that a donesticated insurer
was an insurance conpany that was based in Al aska. He
stated that Al aska had seven donesticated insurers, and the
majority were property and casualty insurers. He stated
that the life insurers were donmesticated in other states
and were admtted to wite in any state they decide to
conduct busi ness.

10: 05: 49 AM

Senat or O son felt suspicion when the corporations
attenpted to speak in favor of consuners. He wondered if
there was an effect on the consuners. M. Hester responded
that the premium nust reflect the risk if the prem um was
| ess, and the premium taxes were built into the price of
the premum He stressed that each risk nust be determ ned
on its own nerit.

Senator O son surmsed that consunmer groups would be in
favor of the legislation. M. Hester replied that he had
not heard from any consuner groups regarding the
| egi sl ation.

Vice-Chair Mcciche noted that there was an estinmated
$16, 000 reduction in taxes. He wondered if there was an
anticipated increase to nmake up the difference in revenue.
M. Hester replied that there could one or nany policies to
make up the difference in revenue.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/23/15 9:04 A M



Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered if there was a national trend
for a reduction in life insurance policies. M. Hester
replied that he was not aware of a trend, and agreed to
provi de nore information.

Vi ce-Chair M cciche remarked that the state should
understand the policy, and there should be sone resistance.

SB 15 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

10: 10: 22 AM
RECESSED

12:14: 00 PM
RECONVENED

#sb30
SENATE BILL NO. 30

"An Act relating to controlled substances; relating to
marijuana; relating to driving notor vehicles when
there is an open marijuana container; and providing
for an effective date.”

12:14: 32 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche MOVED to ADOPT the commttee substitute
for SB 30, Wrk Draft 29-LS0231\V (Martin, 3/13/15). Co-
Chair MacKi nnon OBJECTED for di scussion.

ERIN SHI NE, STAFF, SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON, explained the
changes in the commttee substitute. She stated that the
commttee substitute incorporated sone of the anmendnents
from March 12 and March 13. She | ooked at page 1, line 3,
which deleted "relating to nunicipalities" as related to
Amendrment 4. She referred to page 3, lines 13 through 29

whi ch i ncorporated Amendnment 22: the pronoting contraband
amendnent. She explained that currently, a controlled
substance was not allowed in a prison. The change treated
marijuana |ike alcohol, and |owered the penalty from a
Class C felony to a Oass A m sdeneanor. She | ooked at page
5, lines 17 through 20, which incorporated Amendnent 6 that
changed the aggregate to usable marijuana. She referred to

page 6, line 18, as related to Anendnent 18 that was a
t echni cal fix that i ncluded m sconduct involving a
controlled substance. She |ooked at page 6, lines 24

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/23/15 9:04 A M



through 25, which clarified that hone possession |evels
were not applicable for crimnal possession |evels. She
referred to page 7, lines 2 through 7, which renoved
manuf acturers, because the initiative clearly allowed for
manuf acturing. She |ooked at page 7, line 28 through page
8, and line 1, which incorporated the usable marijuana. She
referred to page 8, lines 6, 9, 12, and 19, which
i ncor porated usabl e marijuana.

12:22:45 PM

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that the CS did not include the
anmendnent that was previously adopted.

Co- Chair MacKinnon surmsed that the conmittee substitute
i ncluded all previously adopted anendnents, except for one.
Ms. Shi ne agr eed.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon REMOVED her objection. There being NO
further OBJECTION, the proposed commttee substitute was
adopt ed.

Senator Hof fran MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent 1, 29-LS0231\V.?2
Martin, 3/19/15 (copy on file).

Co- Chair MacKi nnon OBJECTED for di scussi on.
Senat or Hof f man expl ai ned t he anendnent.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon REMOVED her objection. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

12: 27: 23 PM
AT EASE

12: 27: 49 PM
RECONVENED

12: 27: 55 PM

Vice-Chair M cciche discussed the attached fiscal notes.

12:32: 08 PM
AT EASE

12:34:42 PM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 03/23/15 9:04 A M



12:34: 49 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that the Departnent of Public
Safety (DPS) would identify other funding sources.

Senator Hoffrman noted that the fiscal note from Departnent
of Commerce, Comunity and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED)
reflected that the governor had requested.

Co- Chair MacKinnon stated that there was a separate bill
t hat address regul ati ons.

Senat or Dunl eavy did not support adding nore funds to the
| egi sl ation, because of Al aska's current fiscal situation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon renarked that there was a simlar bill
that was currently in the |egislative process.

Vice-Chair Mcciche MOVED to REPORT SB 30 out of conmttee
wi th individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

CS SB 30 (FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with two new zero fiscal notes
from the Departnent of Adm nistration; one new zero fiscal
note from the Departnment of Corrections; one new zero
fiscal note fromthe Departnent of Law, one new zero fiscal
note from the Departnment of Public Safety; one new zero
fiscal note from the Al aska Judiciary System and one new
fiscal inmpact note from the Departnment of Comrerce,
Community and Econom c Devel opnent.

12:37:47 PM
AT EASE

12: 38: 54 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon di scussed the follow ng day's agenda.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
12: 39: 34 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 12:39 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 03/23/15 9:04 A M



